
Contact:  Paul Mountford, Democratic Services  
Tel: 01270 686472 
E-Mail: paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

  
 

Cabinet Member for Adult Services 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Monday, 25th October, 2010 
Time: 10.00 am 
Venue: Committee Suite 2/3 - Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach, 

CW11 1HZ 
 
The agenda is divided into two parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and 
press. Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the 
reasons indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal and/or 

prejudicial interests in any item on the agenda  
 

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is allocated for 

members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relevant to the work of the 
meeting. Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the Chairman 
will decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where 
there are a number of speakers. Members of the public are not required to give notice to use 
this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 hours’ notice is encouraged. 
 
Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide three clear 
working days’ notice, in writing, in order for an informed answer to be given. 
 

4. Adult Services Transport Consultation  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To consider a proposal to consult on options for achieving savings within the Adult Services 

transport budget. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



5. Adult Services Charging Policy Review  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
 To consider proposals to consult on the Budget Setting Consultation process to explore all 

options available to increase income to enable reinvestment in front line services. 
 

 
 
(There are no Part 2 items) 
 



1 
 

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 
Cabinet Member for Adult Services 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
25th October 2010 

Report of: Adult and Community Health & Wellbeing 
Subject/Title: Adult Services Transport Consultation 
                                                                      
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 Adult Services transport budget is £1.6m (2010/11) delivering 

transport to 520 adults to and from their day care provision through 
Integrated Transport shared service fleet vehicles (43 mini-buses) 
or hired transport. 

 
1.2 Adult Services have an efficiency challenge to save £1.3m from the transport 

budget 2011/12. In order to provide a range of options to meet that challenge, a 
formal public consultation is required.   
 

2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Adult Services agree to a public consultation to 

explore the options available to make required savings by reductions in service, 
increases in charges or a combination of both. 

 
3.0 Options 
 

• 2 Month separate and discreet consultation process (preferred option) or 
• Consultation linked to the full budget setting process along with other items 

such as Adult Services Charging Policy Review. 
 
4.0 Process 
 
 Linked to the above process a number of key actions will follow: 

• Release an approved press and public statement, proactively managing 
publicity to protect the Authorities’ reputation. 

• Communicate directly with service users through bill-flyer, letter, direct 
consultation and through support groups (Carers Forum, OP Forum, LD 
Partnership Board, Third Sector partners) to encourage feedback and 
participation in consultation. 

• Take account of any Equality Impact issues following consultation in future 
plans for transport provision within Cheshire East Council. 

• Keep Places Directorate informed of consultation plans and outcomes in 
order to manage staff/resource issues and market development of 
accessible transport with associated policies at an appropriate pace to 
enable transition. 

• Issue timeline of process. 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



2 
 

 
5.0     Reasons for Recommendations 
 

Transport is a discretionary service for the Directorate, work is already 
underway to stimulate alternative market provision and make 
efficiencies within the transport provision and budget.  Economic 
climate and growth demands on Adult Services accelerate the need to 
rationalise services. 

      
6.0 Wards Affected - All 
 
7.0 Local Ward Members - All 
 
8.0 Policy Implications 
       
  Climate change:  in line with Total Transport objectives.   
 
        Health: to ensure service uses with complex needs continue to receive  
        essential support.  
 
        Concessionary Travel:  to meet anticipated greater demand on  
        concessionary travel by service users, carers/escorts to meet personalisation  
           agenda. 
 
        Public Information: in accessible format for all and brokerage to assist  
           customers to access appropriate transport. 
 
        Whole System Commissioning: Children's, Adults Services and Health  
 
9.0 Financial Implications 
 
9.1 There will be some costs associated with the consultation which will  

be met by the service. 
 
10.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
10.1 Where an assessment under Sec 47(1) NHSCCA highlights an unmet 

substantial or critical need for a service that the local authority has a duty to 
provide and their transport needs are also assessed as unmet critical or 
substantial, then the need for transport must be reflected in the care package.  
The Local Authority does not have to provide transport and can provide funding 
through a personal budget.  

 
10.2 Consultation must contain four elements: 
 

1 Must be at a time when proposals are still at a formative stage. 
2 Must give sufficient reasons for any proposal to permit of intelligent 

consideration and response. 
3 Adequate time must be given for any consideration and response. 

Page 2



3 
 

4 Result of the consultation must be conscientiously taken into 
account in finalising any proposals. 

 
10.3 An Equality Impact Assessment must be completed before reaching 

any final decision to substantially vary service provision. 
 
Name:  Phil Lloyd 
Designation: Director of Adults, Community,  Health & Wellbeing 
Tel No:  01270 686553 
Email:  phil.lloyd@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 
Cabinet Member for Adult Services 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
25th October 2010 

Report of: Adult and Community Health & Wellbeing 
Subject/Title: Adult Services Charging Policy Review  
                                                                      
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 Cabinet expect Adult Services to raise an additional £450k in income in 

the 3 years from 2010/11 through to 2012/13 (phased 
£100k/£150k/£200k).   These targets are part of the existing 2010/11 
MTFS that has been rolled forward.   Significantly, the wider reductions 
to the Adults service net budget need to be considered; in the first 4 full 
years of operation of Cheshire East Council from 2009/10 to 2012/13 
reductions of almost £10m are anticipated.   The Comprehensive 
Spending Review announcement will further exacerbate this position.    

 
1.2 A major strand of achieving these targets will be moving from 

commissioned care packages to personal budgets for new and 
existing service users, as consulted on in 2008/09 "The 
Personalisation of Services". 

 
1.3 In order to provide a range of options to meet the challenge, a formal public  

consultation is required in respect of changes to the Non-Residential Charging 
Policy and the Scheme of Delegated Charges.   
 

2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Adult Services agree to a public consultation 

linked to the Budget Setting Consultation process to explore all options 
available to increase income to enable reinvestment in front line services. 

            
3.0 Options 
 
3.1 Consultation details will be drawn together by Officers and Legal Services in 

advance of consultation. Consultation to be linked to the full budget setting 
process to explore the following: 

 
• Set the Scheme of Delegated charges at a suitable level to remove 

significant subsidy, to include Council overhead costs and enable the 
recovery of additional income from customers who can afford to pay, whilst 
ensuring the level of charges provide Care4CE with competitiveness in the 
open market.  

Agenda Item 5Page 5



2 
 

• Levy an administrative charge for deferred charge agreements, set property 
valuations at the highest market value and apply interest to deferred debt at 
an appropriate rate in accordance with statutory guidance. 

• Maximise the use of Direct Debit for income collection.  Offering this as the 
only option in new cases and applying an administrative fee to those who 
continue to choose to pay through alternative methods. 

• Maximise the use of the Empower Card as the primary method of receiving 
a Direct Payment and as the single option to new service users. 

• Move to a process where the Council encourages net payments to care 
providers through contract terms, offering incentives to providers who move 
to direct income collection from the customer, thus reducing Council 
overheads. 

• Explore all options for charging for the administration of managed individual 
personal budgets both within the Council and for access to Third Sector 
support. 

• Explore options to streamline the Council's Appointeeship and Deputyship 
system via electronic banking and introduce a service fee. 

• To apply an administrative charge to cover additional Council costs 
associated with debt recovery processes following legal action. 

• To apply interest to debt following legal action. 
• Remove subsidy from the Non-Residential charging formula, currently set at 

90% of disposable income taken as a maximum charge. 
• Extend the Non-Residential Charging policy to include strategically 

commissioned care services for carers. 
• Extend the Non-Residential Charging policy to recipients of Independent 

Living Funds subject to guidance on the continuation of this funding. 
• Increase the flat rate charges for Transport from £2 to a more realistic price 

per trip, removing significant subsidy and taking account of outcomes of 
specific Transport consultation. 

• Reduce subsidy in the flat rate charge for Meals, subject to this being cost 
effective and within the terms of the current meals contract. 

• Revise and tighten the disability expenditure assessment framework to 
ensure consistent and fair application. 

  
4.0 Process 
  
4.1 Linked to the above process a number of key actions will follow:- 

• Release an approved press and public statement, proactively managing 
publicity to protect the Authorities’ reputation. 

• Communicate directly with service users through bill-flyer and consultation 
events to encourage feedback and participation in consultation. 

• Take account of any Equality Impact issues following consultation and in 
developing detailed implementation plans. 

• Issue timeline of process. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



3 
 

5.0     Reasons for Recommendations 
 
5.1 As government funding is reduced at a time when greater demands 

are placed on social care services, many local authorities will be 
forced to look for ways to raise additional income. 

      
6.0 Wards Affected - All 
 
7.0 Local Ward Members - All 
 
8.0 Policy Implications 
 

Adult Services Fees and Charges Policy:  To be prepared following 
consultation and Cabinet approval of changes. 
 
Public Information: in accessible format for all.   Brokerage exists to assist 
customers to access alternative services where needed. 
 
Whole System Commissioning: Children's, Adults Services and Health – 
welfare benefit advice and information to ensure maximum take up of benefits 
through partnership working. 

 
9.0 Financial Implications 
 
9.1 Consultation will be covered within the existing processes for budget 

setting.  There will be costs (yet to be determined) associated with the 
processes following consultation i.e. temporary resources will be 
required to change policy, systems and processes in a phased manner 
according to an approved action plan. 

 
10.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
10.1 Section 17 of the Health and Social Services and Social Security 

Adjudications Act 1983 gives councils a discretionary power to charge 
for certain non-residential services. The charge can be set at any level 
that the authority considers reasonable, subject to complying with other 
legislation in respect of charging and trading.  

 
10.2 The current guidance in respect of charging is contained in ‘Fairer 

charging policies for home care and other non-residential social 
services: Guidance for Councils with Social Services Responsibilities’ 
issued in September 2003.  Under this guidance a local authority is 
required to consult if considering changing its charging policy. 

 
10.3 Case law states that consultation must contain four elements: 
 

1 It must be at a time when proposals are still at a formative stage. 
2 It must give sufficient reasons for any proposal to permit of 

intelligent consideration and response. 
3 Adequate time must be given for any consideration and response. 

Page 7



4 
 

4 The result of the consultation must be conscientiously taken into 
account in finalising any proposals. 

 
An Equality Impact Assessment must be completed before reaching any final 
decision to substantially vary any service provision. 
 
Name:  Phil Lloyd 
Designation: Director of Adults, Community,  Health & Wellbeing 
Tel No:  01270 686553 
Email:  phil.lloyd@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 8


	Agenda
	4 Adult Services Transport Consultation
	5 Adult Services Charging Policy Review

